

PROCEDURAL POLICY
OF
LAKE SAINT LOUIS
ANGLERS CLUB

BY-LAWS

RULES OF PROCEDURE

AUGUST 1990
(Revised 8/11/10)
(Revised 5/12/11)

INTRODUCTION

The Lake Saint Louis Anglers Club, hereafter known as the Club, is a non-profit organization with the purpose of the development of fishing and the mutual improvement and development of the Lakes Saint Louis and Saint Louise for the purpose of fishing.

The Club members, in a volunteer capacity, are responsible for the smooth operation of all aspects of the Club business. Consequently, it is necessary to develop a framework for conduct of Club business. At present there are two documented levels of “rules” which govern the conduct of Club business and they are as follows:

BY-LAWS Provide the most general rules of the Club. They contain the purpose of the Club, the structure of the governing body, and the officers.

RULES OF PROCEDURES Incorporate the specific details in regarding the implementation of the By-Laws.

This manual is designed to provide the Club members with a clear, concise, and rapid access to needed information regarding the “rules” which govern the operation of the Club.

CHAPTER ONE

BY-LAWS

BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I PURPOSE

Section 1. The principal purpose of this Club is the development of fishing.

Section 2. The secondary purpose is the mutual improvement and development of Lakes Saint Louis and Saint Louis for the purpose of fishing.

Section 3. Other activities of interest to the membership will be encouraged.

ARTICLE II MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. All Lake Saint Louis Community Association members in good standing, interested in fishing and the development of Lake Saint Louis and Saint Louise for fishing, are eligible to apply for membership in the Club. Membership will be effective upon approval as prescribed in the Rules of Procedures.

Section 2. Membership in the Club shall be designated as Individual, Family, Complimentary and Honorary.

A. Individual Membership held by one person.

B. Family Membership held by an individual and the individual's spouse or the individual's children who has not yet reached their nineteenth birthday by the close of the Club's fiscal year.

C. Complimentary Membership conferred for a significant assistance to the sport of fishing or to the Club in carrying out its objectives.

D. Honorary Membership for long and distinguished service to the Club.

Section 3. All members except Complementary shall have the right to vote and hold office.

Section 4. A family membership shall be afforded one vote.

Section 5. Complimentary and Honorary membership shall be the results of a favorable action by the Board of Directors as set forth in the Rules of Procedure.

Section 6. The Board of Directors may revoke the membership of any member for just cause.

ARTICLE III DUES

Section 1. Membership dues shall be as established in the Rules of Procedure.

Section 2. No member delinquent in dues at the time of specified in the Rules of Procedure for the payment of dues will be considered a member in good standing.

ARTICLE IV MEETINGS

Section 1. The Club shall hold an annual meeting for the election of Director(s), President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, and for the transactions of other business. The date of the annual meeting shall be as specified in the Rules of Procedure.

Section 2. A quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of one-fourth (1/4) of the membership qualified to vote or ten (10) members of the Club, whichever is lower.

Section 3. Those members present at the annual meeting, and meeting the criteria of Article IV, Section 2, shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business for which notice has been mailed, or otherwise delivered, to each member not less than two (2) weeks nor more than six (6) weeks prior to the meeting.

Section 4. Except as otherwise specified in these By-Laws and Rules of Procedure, the membership meeting of the Club shall be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order, Revised.

ARTICLE V BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND ELECTION

Section 1. The Board of Directors shall consist of the most previous past year Club President and two elected Directors. Candidates for Director shall have been members of the Club for at least six (6) months prior to election date.

Section 2. The officers shall consist of a President, Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary and shall hold office for one (1) year from date of installation. Candidates for President shall have been members of the Club for at least six (6) months prior to election date.

Section 3. The procedure for filling vacancies shall be as described in the Rules of Procedure.

Section 4. Directors(s), President, Vice President, Treasurer, or Secretary maybe recalled at a Club meeting for which notice has been mailed, or otherwise delivered, to each member not less than two (2) weeks nor more than six (6) weeks prior to the meeting. The notice shall state the reasons for considering the removal of the incumbent and shall include a statement by the incumbent. Recall shall require a majority vote of the members present and voting.

Section 5. Recall of a Director(s), President, Vice President, Treasurer, or Secretary maybe proposed by the Board of Directors or by petition signed by one-fourth (1/4) of the membership qualified to vote, or ten (10) members of the Club, whichever is lower.

Section 6. The Board of Directors may recommend for recall the President, Vice President, Treasurer, or Secretary for failure to attend four (4) scheduled meeting during the current fiscal year or failure to perform the duties of his office.

Section 7. No individual may simultaneously serve as two (2) or more of the following: Director, President, Vice President, Treasurer, or Secretary. Upon election and installation from one to the other of these listed positions, an automatic resignation takes effect for the earlier held position.

Section 8. The term of positions are as follows, except where as specified in the Rules of Procedure:

A. Directors	
Elected	Two (2) years
Past President	One (1) year
B. President	One (1) year
C. Vice President	One (1) year
D. Treasurer	One (1) year
E. Secretary	One (1) year

ARTICLE VI FINANCE

Section 1. The fiscal year of the Club shall be from January 1 to December 31.

Section 2. The previous fiscal year Treasurer and the current fiscal year Treasurer shall submit a joint financial report for all activities of the Club for the previous fiscal year by January 31. The Treasurer will present an interim financial report at the annual meeting.

Section 3. The Treasurer shall prepare a written report each month which reflects the financial transaction since the Club's previous monthly meeting. The Treasurer shall make an oral presentation of the aforementioned report at the monthly Club meeting.

ARTICLE VII DISSOLUTION, ABSORPTION, OR MERGER

Section 1. This Club may not be dissolved, absorbed, or merged with another club except by adoption of an appropriate amendment to these By-Laws and compliance with appropriate provisions of law.

Section 2. The Board of Directors shall determine the disposition of all Club property, in accord with its non-profit status.

Section 3. If this Club is dissolved, absorbed, or merged with another club; no portion of the assets of the Club shall be distributed to any member so as to accrue to his or her personal benefit.

ARTICLE VIII AMENDMENT

Section 1. These By-Laws can be amended at a Club meeting for which prior notice has been mailed, or otherwise delivered, to each member not less than two (2) weeks nor more than six (6) weeks prior to the meeting. The notice shall contain the text of the Section(s) for which an amendment(s) is being proposed, the text of the proposed amendment(s) and a description of the purpose of the proposed amendment(s). Adoption of a proposed amendment(s) shall require affirmation two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members present and voting.

Section 2. Amendment(s) of these By-Laws may be proposed by the Board of Directors or by petition signed by one-fourth (1/4) of the membership qualified to vote, or by ten (10) members of the Club, whichever is lower.

ARTICLE IX ADOPTION

Section 1. These amended By-Laws shall become effective on adoption, unless presented otherwise.

CHAPTER TWO

RULES OF PROCEDURE

RULES OF PROCEDURE

ARTICLE I MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. A membership year of the Club shall be concurrent with the Club fiscal year.

Section 2. A member will remain a member in good standing from the start of the fiscal year until February 15 of the following year.

Section 3. A member joining the Club after June 30 of the current Club fiscal year will be considered a member in good standing through the following Club fiscal year.

Section 4. Membership will be effective when a written application accompanied by dues has been received and processed.

Section 5. A Complimentary member is elected for one (1) year by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

Section 6. An Honorary member is elected for life by a unanimous vote of the Board of Directors. An Honorary member will exercise the rights and privileges of an individual member without payment of dues.

ARTICLE II DUES

Section 1. Annual dues for Club members shall be:

- | | |
|---------------|---------|
| A. Individual | \$20.00 |
| B. Family | \$20.00 |

Section 2. A member of the previous Club fiscal year, excluding members joining after June 30, will be considered delinquent in dues after February 15 of the current Club fiscal year.

ARTICLE III MEETINGS

Section 1. The annual meeting of the Club shall be in November. Additionally, there shall be monthly membership meetings in order to accomplish Club business.

Section 2. Other meetings shall be as determined by the President and/or may be called by a written notice of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE IV BOARD OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS AND ELECTIONS

Section 1. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the general policy direction of the Club and shall at its periodic meetings review the conduct of the affairs of the Club.

Section 2. The officers of the Club shall each perform the various duties customarily assigned to such offices.

Section 3. The President shall be the registered Agent of the Club.

Section 4. If the Office of the President becomes vacant, the Vice President shall become the President and serve until the next regular election.

Section 5. If the Office(s) of the Vice President, Treasurer, or the Secretary become vacant, the Board of Directors shall nominate a candidate, subject to approval by a majority of the membership attending the next scheduled Club membership meeting; to serve until the next regular election.

Section 6. The Secretary shall be responsible for maintaining and filing the necessary documentation to maintain the Club's "Not for profit" status with the State of Missouri.

Section 7. A vacancy in the Board of Directors shall be filled by the nomination of a candidate by the President, subject to approval by the majority of the membership attending the next scheduled Club membership meeting; to serve until the next regular election. If, at this time, there remains an unexpired term of one (1) year, a Director shall be elected for the unexpired term in the manner prescribed for all other Directors.

Section 8. The Nominating Committee

- A. At least ninety (90) days prior to the election (annual meeting), the President shall nominate at least two members, subject to approval by a majority of the membership attending next scheduled membership meeting, to serve as the Nominating Committee.
- B. The Nominating Committee shall nominate one (1) or more candidates for each position. These nominees shall be notified of their nominations a minim of thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting (Election).
- C. All nominees must submit evidence to agree to serve if elected.
- D. Nominations may be made from the floor at the annual meeting. The nomination must be seconded. If the nominee is not present at the annual meeting they must submit written evidence that they agree to serve if elected.

Section 9. At each annual meeting, Club members shall be elected to serve a two (2) year term as a member of the Board of Director and one (1) year term as President, Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary; replacing those members whose terms have expired.

Section 10. Election of the officers and Directors by the members shall be by plurality.

ARTICLE V FINANCES

Section 1. The Treasurer shall prepare financial action plan as required by the Board of Directors. The Treasurer shall submit the plan to the Board of Directors and the President at least ninety (90) days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year.

Section 2. All expenditures shall be supported by a voucher.

Section 3. All checks less than (<) \$250.00 must be signed by one (1) Officer of the Club. All checks greater than (>) \$250.00 must be signed by two (2) Officers of the Club.

ARTICLE VI AMENDMENTS

Section 1. The Rules of Procedure may be amended at a Club meeting for which notice has been mailed, or otherwise delivered, to each member not less than two (2) weeks nor more than six (6) weeks prior to the meeting. The notice shall contain the text of the Section(s) for which amendment(s) is being proposed, and the text of the proposed amendment(s). Adoption of the proposed amendment(s) shall require affirmation of two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members present and voting.

Section 2. Amendment(s) to the Rules of Procedure maybe be proposed by the Board of Directors or by petition signed by one-fourth (1/4) of the membership qualified to vote or ten (10) members of the Club, whichever is lower.

ARTICLE VII ADOPTIONS

Section 1. These amended Rules of Procedure shall become effective on adoption, unless presented otherwise.

ARTICLE VIII POLICY

Section 1. The Board of Directors shall maintain a record of the Club's procedural policies in a form readily usable by the membership. They will also provide recommendations to the membership for changes in policy and amendments to the By-Laws and the Rules of Procedure.

Section 2. Code of conduct – Club.

- A. The Lake Saint Louis Angler's Club strives to maintain a respectful environment that promotes our shared value of collaboration through teamwork. Therefore, the Club

believes in and follows a practice of dealing directly with each member as an individual with his or her own wants and interests. We deal with each member openly, honestly, fairly and without discrimination, treating each person with the individual dignity he or she deserves and we require each of our members to act in the same manner.

- B. Club members are expected to accept and adhere to the Club's principles and ethics, respect the rights and feelings of others and exhibit a high degree of personal and professional integrity at all times. Violation of these principles could result in just cause to suspend or discharge members from Club events with or without prior warning.
- C. Violations include, but are not limited to:
 - Interfering with fellow members of the Club or interfering with Club events.
 - Directing abusive, profane or vulgar language towards a fellow club member.
 - Fighting
 - Disregarding safety regulations
 - Misuse of the club message board as outlined in the message board rules and regulations
- D. Any member having a reasonable basis to believe another member is in violation of the Code of Conduct of the Club shall immediately report the facts and circumstances to the Board of Directors in writing for review and decision by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

Section 3. Organization of a Bass Tournament Committee.

- A. Objective: To organize a group of 5 leaders to govern the procedure and policy of organized tournament events and to make decisions on behalf of the tournament participants to create an atmosphere that is conducive to fun, fishing and comradery.
- B. Nominating committee members: Committee member selection: All nominees for Committee Members shall be presented at the September meeting and will be selected by a majority vote of the Club Members present at the November Anglers Club meeting. Vote shall be cast on paper ballot. Nominees need not be present. The Board of Directors will notify nominees within 48 hours for acceptance or denial.
- C. Tournament committee members must meet all requirements:
 - Must be able to participate in 50% of scheduled tournaments.
 - Must be able to participate in a minimum of 6 monthly Angler Club meetings.
 - Must be in good standing with the club.
- D. Committee member term: A committee member term will be one year at which time the selection process will be repeated. Committee members can serve consecutive terms as voted in by tournament participants. Upon committee member selection the committee must meet to determine allocation of responsibility including these duties:
 - Possession of tournament equipment
 - Tournament Registration

- Livewell checks
- Measuring of fish
- Official weigh-ins
- Tournament Awards

- E. If a position is revoked the selection process will be repeated to fill open positions.
- F. One of the five tournament committee members shall take on the responsibility of the tournament committee leader (chairman). The chairman shall be responsible for recording tournament committee votes and general organization of the committee.
- G. Responsibilities can be allocated differently each week as determined within the tournament committee.
- H. Committee members are also responsible for listening to ideas and opinions of the tournament participants.
- I. Tournament participants will be responsible for submitting in writing to the tournament committee all requests for changes to tournament rules and regulations and requests for special non-scheduled events.
- J. Tournament committee voting shall only take place after a reasonable attempt has been made to contact all tournament committee members (via phone calls and emails – emails alone is not considered a reasonable attempt). After a vote has taken place, it is the job of the tournament committee chairman to notify all tournament committee members of the results of any vote and permanently document the voting results.
- K. The Tournament Committee must submit, in writing, any proposed changes to the Club Officers for approval. Club officers will render a decision within 48 hours from the time the change was submitted.
- L. If a decision is delivered without proper voting process the decision will be deemed null and void. Any committee member involved in false decision will be reviewed by Board of Directors and subject to revoking of their position.
- M. Committee members will be held to the Codes of Conduct for the Club and Committee.
- N. Any tournament participant having a reasonable basis to believe a tournament committee member is in violation of the Code of Conduct shall immediately report the facts and circumstances to the Board of Directors in writing for review and decision by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Code of conduct – Bass Tournament Committee.

- A. The Lake Saint Louis Angler’s Club strives to maintain a respectful environment that promotes our shared value of collaboration through teamwork. Therefore, the Club

believes in and follows a practice of dealing directly with each member as an individual with his or her own wants and interests. We deal with each member openly, honestly, fairly and without discrimination, treating each person with the individual dignity he or she deserves and we require each of our members to act in the same manner.

- B. Tournament Committee members are expected to accept and adhere to the Club's principles and ethics, respect the rights and feelings of others and exhibit a high degree of personal and professional integrity at all times. Violation of these principles could result in just cause to suspend or discharge members from Club events with or without prior warning.
- C. Violations include, but are not limited to:
- Failure to adhere to Code of Conduct for the Club
 - Negligent or willful damage to Club property
 - Falsification of records
 - Theft of property belonging to club members or club.
 - Failure to abide by outlined tournament rules.
 - Failure to conduct themselves in a sportsmanlike manner
- D. Any member having a reasonable basis to believe a tournament committee member is in violation of the Code of Conduct shall immediately report the facts and circumstances to the Board Directors in writing for review and decision by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.